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Notice is hereby given that the Thirty Second Annual General Meeting of Nikhil Adhesives Limited will 
be held on Friday the 28th September, 2018 at 11.00 a.m. at The Andheri Recreation Club, Dadabhai 
Road, Opposite Bhavans College Road, Andheri (West) Mumbai -400058 to transact the following 
business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1) To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year 
ended 31st March, 2018 together with the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

st2) To declare dividend for the financial year ended 31  March 2018.

3) To appoint a director in place of Mr. Tarak J. Sanghvi (DIN 00519403), who retires by rotation at this 
Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

4) Ratification of Appointment of Auditors:

 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to 
time, the Company hereby ratifies the appointment of M/s. PHD & Associates, Chartered Accountants, 
(Firm Registration Number: 111236W) as Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of 
this Annual General Meeting (AGM) till the conclusion of the Thirty Third AGM of the Company to be held in 
the year 2019, to examine and audit the accounts of the Company at such remuneration as may be mutually 
agreed between the Board of Directors of the Company and the Auditors.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

5) To consider and pass the following Resolution as an Special Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended and other applicable provisions if any, consent of members 
of the Company be and is hereby accorded for continuation of Directorship of Mr. Madhusudan M. Vora who 
were reappointed as Independent Directors of the Company for a period of 5 years at the 28th Annual 

th rd General Meeting of the Company held on 27  September 2014 till conclusion of 33 Annual General Meeting 
by way of ordinary resolutions and who have attained the age of 75 years for the remaining period of their 
existing term of Directorship as Independent Directors of the Company.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors of the Board of the Company be and is hereby authorized 
either severally or jointly to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be deemed proper and expedient to 
give effect to this  Resolution.”

6) To consider and pass the following Resolution as an Special Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended and other applicable provisions if any, consent of members 
of the Company be and is hereby accorded for continuation of Directorship of Mr. H.S. Kamath who were 
reappointed as Independent Directors of the Company for a period of 5 years at the 28th Annual General 

th rd Meeting of the Company held on 27  September 2014  till conclusion of 33 Annual General Meeting by way 
of ordinary resolutions and who have attained the age of 75 years for the remaining period of their existing 
term of Directorship as Independent Directors of the Company.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors of the Board of the Company be and is hereby authorized 
either severally or jointly to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be deemed proper and expedient to 
give effect to this  Resolution.”

NOTICE
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7) To consider and pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed there under, as amended from time to time and such 
other permissions as may be necessary, the payment of remuneration of ` 50,000/- (Rupees Fifty 
Thousand) with applicable Goods And Services  Tax plus reimbursement of out of pocket expenses 
at actual to Messrs B. F. Modi & Associates, Cost Accountants  who (Firm Registration No:10064)
were appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company as “Cost Auditors” to conduct the audit of 
the cost records maintained by the Company in accordance with the Companies (Cost Records and 
Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended, for the financial year ending 31stMarch, 2019, be and is hereby 
ratified and approved.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors of the Board of the Company be and is 
hereby authorized either severally or jointly to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be 
deemed proper and expedient to give effect to this Resolution.”

NOTES:

1) A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT ONE OR MORE PROXIES TO 
ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE 
COMPANY. The instrument of proxy, in order to be effective, must be deposited at the Registered Office 
of the Company duly completed and signed not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the 
meeting. Proxies submitted on behalf of limited companies, societies, etc., must be supported by 
appropriate resolutions/authority, as applicable.

A person can act as proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not 
more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company. In case a proxy is proposed to be appointed 
by a Member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights, 
then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

2) The statement, pursuant to Section 102  of the Act in respect of Special Business at Item No. 5,6 and (1)
7 forms part of this notice. Additional information, pursuant to Regulations 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and Secretarial Standard - 2 issued by 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India as notified by the Central Government on general meetings 
in respect of Directors seeking appointment or reappointment at the Annual General Meeting is 
furnished as Annexure to the notice.

3)    Members who hold shares in dematerialized form are requested to bring their Client ID and DPID 
numbers for easy identification for attendance at the meeting.

a. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the company will remain 
closed from 20th September, 2018 to 28th September, 2018 (both days inclusive).

4)  The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the company will remain closed 
from 20th September, 2018 to 28th September, 2018 (both days inclusive).The dividend on 
equity shares as recommended by the Board of Directors, if declared, will be payable to those 
Equity Shareholders whose names stand on the Register of Members of the Company on 28th 
September 2018 and in respect of shares held in the electronic form, the dividend will be 
payable to the beneficial owners as per details furnished by the Depositories for this purpose.

5) Members are requested to notify immediately any change of address

a) To their Depository Participants (DPs) in respect of their electronic share accounts, and

b) To the company's Registrars, M/S Sharex Dynamic (India) Pvt. Ltd. in respect of their 
 physical shares, if any, quoting their folio numbers.

6) Members may avail the facility of nomination by nominating a person to whom their shares in 
the Company shall vest in the event of death. The prescribed form can be obtained from the 
Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agent.

7) Shareholders desiring any information relating to the accounts are requested to write to the 
Company at an early date so as to enable the management to keep the information ready.
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8) All unclaimed dividends upto and including the year 2008-09 have been transferred to the credit of 
Investor Education and Protection Fund (the Fund) established by the Central Government. In 
respect of unclaimed dividend for the Year 2009-10 an amount of Rs. 1,13,569 which was required to 
be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company in October, 2017, is 
pending transfer. The management is taking necessary steps to comply with transfer of the said 
amount to the Fund. Shareholders are hereby informed that pursuant to Section 125 of the Act, the 
Company will be obliged to transfer to the credit of the said Fund any money lying in the Unpaid 
Dividend Accounts remaining unclaimed for a period of seven years from the dates they became first 
due for payment. In accordance with provisions of the said Section, no claim shall lie against the 
Company or the Fund in respect of individual amounts of dividend. The Company has uploaded the 
details of unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with the Company on the website of the Company 
www.nikhiladhesives.com and on the website of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

 In respect of unclaimed dividend for the Year 2009-10, an amount of Rs. 1,13,569 which was 
required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company in 
October, 2017, is pending transfer. The management is taking necessary steps to comply with 
transfer of the said amount to the Fund.

9) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent 
Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in 
electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their Depository Participants with 
whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can 
submit their PAN to the Company / Sharex Dynamic (India) Pvt. Ltd.

10) The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has taken a “Green Initiative in Corporate Governance” 
allowing paperless compliances by Companies through electronic mode. Companies are now 
permitted to send various notices/documents to its members through electronic mode to the 
registered e- mail addresses of members. Members holding shares in dematerialized form are 
requested to register their e- mail ID with their Depository Participants and members holding 
shares in physical form are requested to register their e-mail ID with Registrar and Share Transfer 
Agents of the Company i.e. Sharex Dynamic (India) Pvt. Ltd.

11) Voting through Electronic means :

 In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, and Regulation 44 of SEBI(Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Company is pleased to provide 
members, the facility to exercise their right to vote at the Thirty Second Annual General Meeting 
(AGM) by electronic means and the business may be transacted through e-Voting Services provided 
by Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL):

The instruction for members for voting electronically is as under:

(i) The voting period begins on Tuesday, 25th September, 2018 (09:00 am) and ends on the 
Thursday, 27th September, 2018 (5:00 pm).During this period shareholders' of the 
Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-
off date (record date) of Friday the 21st September,2018, may cast their vote 
electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

(ii) Log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com

(iii) Click on Shareholders/ Members

(iv) Now, enter your User ID

(a) For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID.

(b) For NSDL: 8 character DP ID followed by 8 digits client ID.

(c) Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter folio number registered with the 

company.
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(v) Next enter the image Verification as displayed and click on Login.

(vi) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and 
voted on an earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

(vii) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

(viii) After entering this details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab

(ix) Members holding shares in physical form will then reach directly the Company selection 
screen, however members holding shares in demat form will now reach 'Password Creation' 
menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new 
password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting 
for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company 
opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your 
password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential

(x) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the 
resolutions contained in this Notice.

(xi) Select on the EVSN (ELECTRONIC VOTING SEQUENCE NUMBER) of NIKHIL ADHESIVES 
LIMITED on which you choose to vote.

(xii) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against same the option 
“YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you 
assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

(xiii) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

(xiv) After selecting the resolution, if you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation 
box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, 
click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

(xv) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(xvi) You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print” option 
on the Voting page.

(xvii) If Demat account holder has forgotten the changed login password then enter the User ID and 
the image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the 
system

(xviii) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL's mobile app m-Voting available for android 
based mobiles. The m- Voting app can be downloaded from Google Play Store. Apple and 
Windows phone users can download the app from the App Store and the Windows Phone Store 
respectively. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app while voting on your 
mobile.

(xix) Note for Non-individual shareholder and custodian:

(a) Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) and Custodian are 
required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as corporate.
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(b) A scanned copy of the registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be 
emailed to heldesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

(c) After receiving the log in details a compliance user should be created using the admin login and 
password. The compliance user should be able to link the account (s) for which they wish to vote 
on.

(d) The list of account linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and 
on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

(e) A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in 
favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer 
to verify the same.

(f) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting you may refer the Frequently Asked 
Questions (“FAQ”) and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com , under help section 
or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com

Other General Instructions:

1) The facility for voting through ballot will also be made available at the AGM, and member or their 
proxies attending the AGM who have NOT cast their vote by remote e-voting, will be able to vote 
at the AGM.

2) The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity 
share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date (record date) of the Friday, 21st September, 
2018 

3) Mr. Dharmesh Zaveri, Practicing Company Secretary & Proprietor M/s D. M. Zaveri & Co., has 
been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent 
manner & voting by ballot at the AGM in a fair &  transparent  manner.

4) The scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, count the vote cast 
at the AGM and thereafter unblock the vote cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at 
least two witnesses not in the employment of the company. The scrutinizer shall submit a 
consolidated scrutinizer's report of the total vote cast in favour of or against the resolutions, not 
later than two days after the conclusion of the AGM to the chairman of the company, who shall 
counter sign the same. The chairman will declare the result of voting within two days after the 
conclusion of the AGM.

5) The result declared along with the scrutinizer report shall be placed on the company's website 
www.nikhiladhesives.com. The result will also be communicated to the stock exchange where 
the shares of the company are listed.

6) Subject to receipt of the requisite number of vote, the resolution shall be deemed to have been 
passed on the date of AGM i.e. the 28th September, 2018.

7) All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement shall be 
open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during normal business hours 
(10.00 am to 6.00 pm) on all working days, up to and including the date of the AGM of the 
Company.

8) Persons who have acquired the shares of the company after the dispatch of Annual Report and 
are members as on 21st September, 2018  (being record date for the purpose of voting), may 
send a request for obtaining their User ID and Password to sharexindia@vsnl.com or contact 
Sharex Dynamic (India) Private Limited on 022- 28515606/28515644.
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Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013

The following Statement sets out all material facts relating to the Special Business mentioned in the 
accompanying Notice:

Item No. 5 and 6

Regulation 17(1A) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
notified on May 9, 2018 prescribes that no listed entity shall appoint a person or continue the 
directorship of any person as a non-executive director who has attained the age of seventy five years 
unless a special resolution is passed to that effect.

Mr. M. M. Vora and Mr. H. S. Kamath who were reappointed as an Independent Directors of the 
Company at the 28th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 27th September, 2014 for a 
period of five years by way of ordinary resolution have attained the age of 75 years.

In view of the said provision of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 
2015, NR Committee discussed the matter and recommended the continuation of Directorship of the 
above Independent Directors for the remaining period of their term.

Mr. M. M. Vora is a Businessman with rich experience of forty five years in the business areas in 
manufacturing of original spare part for automobile, he possesses rich skill and experience in the field 
of administration and general business management. 

Mr. H. S. Kamath Technical Expertise in production / process control and quality management, he 
retired from Chairman of heavy water board Govt.of India and he is conversant with the Company's 
business, industry and other areas relating to the Company.

The above mentioned Independent Directors are experts in their respective fields and their 
experience and valuable guidance is beneficial to the Company.

The Board based on the recommendation of NR Committee and considering benefits of the expertise 
of the aforesaid independent Directors, has recommended the resolution for approval of 
shareholders by way of special resolution. 

Except the above Directors, none of the other Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company 
or their relatives is, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in this resolution.

Item No. 7

Messrs B. F. Modi & Associates, Cost Accountants, were appointed as (Firm Registration No-10064) 
Cost Auditors for the year ending 31st March, 2019 by the Board of Directors on the recommendation 
of the Audit Committee at a remuneration of  ̀ 50,000/- Goods And Services Tax as applicable thereon 
and reimbursement of traveling and other incidental expenses that maybe incurred for the purpose to 
audit the cost records maintained by the Company in accordance with the Companies (Cost Records 
and Audit) Rules, as amended.

As per Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 the remuneration payable to the 
Cost Auditors as approved by the Board has to be ratified subsequently by the Members of the 
Company. Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out 
at Item No. 7 of the Notice for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the 
financial year ending 31st March, 2019.

None of the Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/their relatives is, in any way, 
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item no. 7 of the Notice.

ANNEXURE TO NOTICE
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Disclosure required pursuant to Regulation 36 (3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard -2 of ICSI

Registered Office:     By order of the Board of Directors 

315, The Summit Business Bay, 

Behind Gurunank Petrol Pump, 

Opp. Cinemax, Andheri Kurla Road,    Umesh J. Sanghavi 

Andheri (E), Mumbai – 400093     Managing Director 
thDate: 30  May, 2018

- -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT

Your Company's major business segments are Branded Consumer product under brand name “MAHACOL” 
“FORMISOL” and “EMDILITH” and Industrial products are under various brand names such as “EMDILITH” 
“EMDITEX” and “EMDICRYL”. Since last one year your Company has entered into an agreement with 2 large 
companies name (i) “ASIAN PAINTS” for manufacturing and supplying various grades of adhesives and paint 
emulsions (ii) “DOW CHEMICAL INTERNATIONAL PVT. LTD.” for manufacturing and supplying various grades 
of paint emulsions. These businesses are long term in nature.

Consumer Products are mainly wood Adhesives, sticker adhesives, leather adhesives and general purpose 
adhesives these products are widely used by carpenters, printers, plumbers, mechanics, households, students, 
offices etc.

Industrial Products segment covers products such as Industrial Adhesives, synthetic emulsions resins among 
others, which caters to various industries like packaging, textiles, paints, leather etc.

 

OUTLOOK

During the current year Goods and Service Tax (GST) was implemented due to which our Indirect Taxes have 
reduced  on our Consumer Products which are passed on to the customers with this we are expecting substantial 
growth of business in this division in the coming years. 

The Central Statistics Office and RBI have estimated GDP growth of 7.1% for the Indian economy for 2017-18 and 
large government spending on infrastructure will help the industry grow. We expect  all our divisions growth in 
double digits.

Our Consumer Products business is focused on providing customers with a complete range of consumer 
adhesives mainly wood working and packaging adhesive and rubber base adhesive. Our Adhesive Brand 
“MAHACOL” “FORMISOL” and “EMDILITH” has strong market presence and is known for its product quality 
among the influencers and consumers. With a nationwide network, our brand “MAHACOL” “FORMISOL” and 
“EMDILITH” is consider as a respectable player in the adhesive market. We are working on having a PAN India 
presence with a strong distribution network of dealers and distributors and are expecting to grow by 40% in the 
coming year.

STRENGTH, OPPORTUNITIES, THREATS, RISKS, CONCERNS

Your company's major strength is their long time business stakeholders and also its brand image. Since 1960's 
age old days of Hoechst Dyes and Chemicals and Mafatlal Dyes and Chemicals in its vast range of products that 
find usage in different industries and hence there is no over dependence on any particular industries.  

With successful implementation of GST and reduction in taxes on our consumer products along with many other 
factors with government focusing on ease of doing business and spending huge amount on infrastructure 
development your company expects great opportunity with corporate and non corporate customers. 

It will be difficult to predict global market trend due to conflicts and tensions among the major countries on 
various commercial issues which can lead to crisis in currencies and oil market which may affect the local 
markets.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

Your Company has in place the control systems based on the use of computer software that generate sufficient 
management information for internal control purpose. The directors closely monitor the operations of your 
Company personally. Having regard to the size and nature of the business, your Company has adequate internal 
control procedures for managerial control.

HUMAN RESOURCES/INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Your companies' staff turnover ratio is very low which shows high satisfaction among employees. The industrial 
relations are cordial from inception till date.
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Graphical Presentation relating to the business operations

During the year company has entered into a long term agreement with Dow Chemicals International Pvt. Ltd. 
for supplying of Paint Emulsions and other products as per their requirement this will help the company to 
optimum utilization of the capacity and increase the company profitability.

Consumer Products

Branded Consumer Products Segment 
contributed 13% of the volume sales of the 
Company and had a significant growth.

This category includes Wood Adhesives, 
Lamination Adhesives, Sticker Adhesives , 
Packaging Adhesives,  Art and Craft ,    
Construction Chemicals & Footwear.

Industrial Products

 Industrial Products contributed 77% of the volume 
sales of the company. Industrial Products includes 
Industrial Adhesives, Paint Emulsions, textile 
Emulsions.

Industrial Adhesives are used in packaging, Cigarette 
and Automotive Industry. This category contributed 
23% of sales.

Paint Emulsions & Textile Emulsions contributed to 
54% in the overall volume sales of the company.
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MT (in Hundred)
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

MANUFACTURING DIVISION

During the year the volume wise production has increased from 32549 MT to 40700 MT registering growth of 
25.04 %. However in terms of value the manufacturing sales has increased from Rs. 18194 Lakhs to Rs. 24180 
Lakhs registering growth of 32.90%. This figures is not including Discount Allowed as per Ind AS.

TRADING DIVISION

In the trading segment, the turnover has increased from Rs. 8318 Lakhs to Rs. 9381 Lakhs registering growth 
of 12.78%.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE FLUCTUATIONS

Your Company's business is predominantly import- centric. Inspite of volatility in the foreign exchange markets 
during the year under report, your company had a foreign currency gain of Rs. 161 Lakhs as compared to Rs. 80 
Lakhs in the previous year.

DISCLAIMER

 Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report describing your Company's objectives, estimates, 
expectations may be “forward­looking statements” within the meaning of applicable securities laws and 
regulations. Actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied. Important factors that could 
make a difference to your Company's operations include economic conditions affecting demand/supply, price 

conditions in the domestic and overseas markets in which your company operates, changes in government 
regulations, tax laws and other statues. 
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DIRECTOR'S REPORT
To The Members of Nikhil Adhesives Limited 

The Board of Directors are pleased to present the Thirty Second Annual Report together with the audited 
stAccounts for the financial year ended 31  March 2018.

In Financial Year 2017-18 your company has continued the phase of positive outlook and optimism in the 
country due to government policies which had resulted in an overall improvement in the economic outlook. Even 
though the global economy remained lukewarm due to several factors your company has nevertheless improved 
its profitability.

              

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS :

Summary of the Financial Results for the year is as under:-

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors has recommended prorata dividend of Rs. 1/- (Rupee One only)per equity share of face 
value of Rs. 10/- (Rupee Ten only) for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2018 subject to the approval of share 
holders.

RESULT OF OPERATIONS

Detailed analysis of the performance of your Company is presented in the Management Discussion and Analysis 
Report forming part of this Annual Report.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The deposits at the beginning of the financial year were 231.50 Lakhs.

During the year, your Company accepted deposits amounting to 225.50 Lakhs from its members .As at 31 March, 
2018, the amount of deposits stood at Rs. 438.35 Lakhs. There has been no default in repayment of deposits or 
payment of interest during the year. All the deposits accepted by the Company are in compliance with the 
requirements of Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Management Discussion and Analysis, Report on Corporate Governance and a Certificate by the 
Managing Director conforming compliance by all the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel 
with Company's Code of Conduct, Joint Certification by the Managing Director and CFO to the Board and 
Auditors' Certificate regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance are made a part of the 
Annual Report.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

The Board at meeting held on 14th February 2018 noted that accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014.The Company 
is statutorily not required to contribute any amount towards CSR for the financial year 2017-18. Accordingly the 
company has not undertaken any CSR activities during the year under review.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by 
them, your Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3) (c) of the Companies Act, 
2013:

a. That in the preparation of the annual Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018, the 

applicable accounting standards read with requirements set out under Schedule III to the Companies 

Act, 2013, have been followed and there are no material departures from the same;

b. That such accounting policies as mentioned in Notes to the Financial Statements have been selected and 

applied consistently and judgment and estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as 

to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018 and the profit of the 

Company for the year ended on that date;

c. That proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and 

for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d. That the annual Financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e. That proper internal Financial controls were in place and that the Financial controls were adequate and 

were operating effectively;

f. That the systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and were 

adequate and operating effectively

 

RISK MANAGEMENT AND ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company's system of financial and compliance controls with reference to the financial statements and risk 
management is embedded in the business process by which the Company pursues its objectives. The company 
uses foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge its exposure for movements in foreign exchange rate. The use 
of this foreign exchange forward contract reduces the risk to the company. The company does not use these for 
trading or speculative purpose. Additionally, the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors provide risk over 
sight through their review of potential risks which could negatively impact the operations, the proposed budget 
and plan, the Company's strategic framework and any risks that may negatively impact it. The management is 
committed to ensure an effective internal control environment commensurate with the size, scale and 
complexity of the operations, which provides assurance on the efficiency of the Company's operations and 
safety/security of its assets besides orderly and legitimate conduct of Company's business in the circumstances, 
which may reasonably be foreseen. The Company has defined organization structure authority levels delegated 
powers, internal procedures, rules and guidelines for conducting business transactions.

The Company's system and process relating to internal control and procedures for financial reporting have been 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, 
use or disposition of Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities or deliberate miss-statements. Management is 
responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate disclosure controls and procedures and adequate 
internal controls over financial reporting with respect to financial statements besides its effectiveness in the 
context of applicable regulations. The Internal Auditor, the Audit Committee as well as the Board of Directors 
conduct from time to time an evaluation of the adequacy and effectiveness of the system of internal controls for 
financial reporting with respect to financial statements.

14



15ND
32  ANNUAL REPORT 2017 - 2018

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Industrial relations remained cordial throughout the year. Your Directors recognize and appreciate the sincere 
and hard work, loyalty, dedicated efforts and contribution of all the employees in the growth and performance of 
the Company during the year.

DIRECTORS

In terms of Section(s) 149,152 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for the purpose of 
determining the directors liable to retire by rotation, the Independent Directors are not included in the total 
number of directors of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Tarak J. Sanghavi(DIN:00519403), Director shall retire by 
rotation at the ensuring Annual General Meeting and being eligible, has offered himself for re-appointment as a 
Director of the Company.

The details of Directors seeking re-appointment Mr. Tarak J. Sanghavi as required under Regulation 36(3) of the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are given in the notice of the ensuring 
Annual General Meeting, which is being sent to the shareholders along with Annual Report.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Independent Directors of the company have furnished the declaration that they meet the criteria of 
Independence as provided in Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

MEETINGS OF BOARD AND COMMITTEES

During the year under review, six Board Meetings were convened and held. The details of which are given in the 
Report on Corporate Governance.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD, COMMITTEES & DIRECTORS

The Listing Agreement, the Board of Directors of the Company carried out the formal annual performance 
evaluation of all the Directors and also its self-evaluation process, internally, to assess the skills set and 
contribution that are desired, recognizing that competencies and experiences evolves over time. The process 
was conducted by allowing the Board to engage in candid discussions with each Director with the underlying 
objective of taking best possible decisions in the interest of the Company and its stakeholders. The Directors 
were individually evaluated based on structured self-assessment and personal interaction to ascertain feedback 
on well defined parameters which, internally, comprised of level of engagement and their contribution to 
strategic planning and other criteria based on performance and personal attributes of the Directors. During the 
process of evaluation, the Board of Directors also reviewed and discussed the annual performance evaluation of 
Directors carried out by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. A statement in detail indicating the 
manner, in which formal annual evaluation has been made by the Board of Directors, is given in the Report on 
Corporate Governance which forms a part of the Annual Report.

SELECTION AND APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS AND THEIR REMUNERATION

The Board of Directors in consonance with the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee(NRC)has adopted a terms of reference which internally deals with the manner of selection of 
Directors and the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company. The NRC recommends appointment of Director 
/appointment to re-appointment of Managing Director based on their quali cations, expertise, positive 
attributes and independence in accordance with prescribed provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules 
framed there under. The NRC, in addition to ensuring diversity of race and gender, also considers the impact the 
appointee would have on Board's balance of professional experience, background, viewpoints, skills and areas of 
expertise.

The Board of Directors in consonance with the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
has also adopted the Remuneration Policy for the members of the Board and Executive Management. The said 
policy earmarks the principles of remuneration and ensures a well balanced and performance related 
compensation package taking into account shareholders' interest, industry practices and relevant corporate 
regulations in India.
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VIGIL MECHANISM /WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has a Vigil Mechanism and Whistle-Blower Policy to deal with instances of fraud and 
mismanagement, if any, and conducting business with integrity including in accordance with all applicable 
laws and regulations. The details of the Vigil Mechanism and Whistle-Blower Policy are explained in the 
Report on Corporate Governance and also posted on the website of the Company.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s.PHD & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration-No.111236W), were appointed as 
Statutory Auditors to hold office until the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company. 
In the 29th AGM, Messrs PHD & Associates who were functioning as Auditors of the Company for five 
consecutive years, the Board of Directors unanimously had agreed to the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee and had appointed Messrs PHD & Associates as Statutory Auditors of the Company for another 
term of 5 (five) years from the conclusion of that Annual General Meeting (29th AGM) till the conclusion of 
fifth consecutive Annual General Meeting. In accordance with the first proviso of Section 139(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 the appointment of the Auditors is to be ratified by members at every Annual General 
Meeting. The Auditors have confirmed their eligibility to the effect that the ratification of their appointment, 
if made, would be within the prescribed limits of the Companies Act,2013 and that they are not disqualified 
for such appointment. 

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, Messrs D. M. Zaveri& Co., Company Secretaries were 
appointed to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the year ended 31 March, 2018. The Report 
of the Secretarial Auditor is given in Annexure-I, which is attached hereto and forms a part of the Directors' 
Report.

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the Statutory Auditors or the Secretarial Auditors, save and 
except the observation that a sum of ` 1,13,569 which was required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund (Fund) by the Company in the month of October, 2017, is pending transfer. 
The management is taking necessary steps to comply with the transfer of the said amount to the Fund. 

COST AUDITORS

The Board of Directors has appointed Messrs B. F. Modi & Associates, Cost Accountants, as Cost Auditors for 
conducting audit of the cost accounts maintained by the Company in respect of the products of the Company 
covered under The Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Amendment Rules,2014 and fixed their 
remuneration based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee. The remuneration payable to Cost 
Auditors is subject to ratification by the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company which 
have occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to which the financial statement relate 
and the date of the report.

REGULATORY/COURT ORDERS

During the year under report no significant and material orders were passed by the regulators or courts or 
tribunals impacting the going concern status and company's operations in future.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions entered into during the financial year under review by the Company were on an 

arm's length basis and in the ordinary course of business. There are no material significant related party 

transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated 

persons which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. All related party 

transactions are placed before the meeting(s) of Audit Committee for approval. Prior omnibus approval of the 

Audit Committee is obtained for the financial year for the transactions which are of a foreseen and repetitive in 

nature. 
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The statement giving details of all related party transactions entered into pursuant to the omnibus approval 
together with relevant documents/information are placed before the Audit Committee for review and 
approval on quarterly basis. The company has developed a Policy on materiality of Related Party 
Transactions and dealing with Related Party Transactions. The Policy on materiality of Related Party 
Transactions and dealing with Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board is uploaded on the 
company's website and the same is available at the web link http://www.nikhiadhesives.com

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investment in pursuance to Section 186 of the Companies Act, 
2013 are given in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

DISCLOSURE OF RATIO OF REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL, 
ETC.

As required under Section 197(12) read with Rule 5 of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the details of the ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median 
employee's remuneration and such other details as prescribed therein are given in Annexure-II, which is 
attached here to and forms a part of the Directors' Report.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

An Extract of Annual Return as per Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 is given in Annexure- III, which 
is attached here to and forms a part of the Directors' Report. 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The particulars required pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5(2) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the 
company as there was no employee drawing remuneration to the extent mentioned therein.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 
OUTGO

As required under Section 134 (3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of The Companies 
(Accounts) Rules 2014, the information on Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign 
Exchange Earnings and Outgo are given in Annexure-IV which is attached hereto and forms a part of the 
Directors' Report.

GENERAL

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there were 
no transactions on these items during the year under review:

a. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

b. Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any scheme.

c. Neither the Managing Director nor the Whole-time Directors of the Company receive any 
remuneration or commission from any of its subsidiaries.

d. No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which 
impact the going concern status and Company's operations in future.

e. During the year under review, there were no cases filed or reported pursuant to the Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,2013.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

Your Directors believe that the key to success of any company are its employees. Your company has a team of 
able and experienced professionals, whose dedicated efforts and enthusiasm has been an integral part of 
your Company's growth. Your Directors would like to place on record their deep appreciation of their 
continuous effort and contribution to the company.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board desires to place on record its grateful appreciation for the excellent assistance and co-operation 
received from the Government Authorities and continued support extended to the Company by the bankers, 
investors, suppliers and esteemed customers and other business associates. Your Directors also wish to place 
on record their deep sense of appreciation to all the employees of the Company for their unstinted 
commitment and continued contribution in the performance of the Company.

 For and On Behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Mumbai                                                                                            Rajendra J. Sanghavi

Date: 30th May 2018                                                                                Chairman
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ANNEXTURE I

Form No. MR-3
stFor the Financial year ended 31  March, 2018

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

 

To,  

The Members,

Nikhil Adhesives Limited

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 
good corporate practices by Nikhil Adhesives Limited (hereinafter called 'the Company'). Secretarial audit 
was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Nikhil AdhesivesLimited's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed 
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, 
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my 

stopinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the Financial year ended on 31  March, 2018, 
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes 
and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
stCompany for the financial year ended on 31  March, 2018, according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013(the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and the Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of 

Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

Act, 1992('The SEBI'):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2009;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;(Not 

relevant / applicable during the year under review)

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 

2008;(Not relevant / applicable during the year under review)

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;(Not 

relevant / applicable during the year under review)

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;(Not relevant / 

applicable during the year under review)

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015
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I further report that based on the explanation given by the management of the Company, there are no other laws 
that are specifically applicable to the Company.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses to the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and approved by the  

Government of India, as applicable under the Companies Act 2013;

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited in accordance with SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015  

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Secretarial Standards, etc. mentioned above except that certain e­forms that were delayed in filing 
within the due date which are in process of filing. Further there is delay in transferring/crediting those shares in 
respect of which dividend has not been paid or claimed for seven consecutive years or more to the demat account of 
Investor Education and Protection Fund authority which were due for transfer during the year.

I further report that, the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive, 
Non–Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There were no changes in the composition of the Board of 
Directors that took place during the period under review.

Adequate notice is given to all the directors to schedule the Board meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 
were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meetings.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the 
minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be.

 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines.

I further report that during the period under review:

1. The Company has passed special resolution through postal ballot for change of its registered office outside 

the local limits of the city, i.e. from Shreeji Estate, College Road, Vadkun College, Dahanu – 401 602 to315, 

The Summit Business Bay, Behind Gurunank Petrol Pump, Opp. Cinemax, Andheri Kurla Road, Andheri 

East, Mumbai – 400 093.

2. The Company has passed special resolution through postal ballot for Issue of 7,00,000 Equity Shares of the 

face value of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten Only) fully paid up for cash at issue price of Rs. 206/- (including premium 

of Rs.196/-) per share on Preferential Basis to the Non-Promotersin accordance with the provisions of 

Companies Act, 2013 and Chapter VII of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009.

For D. M. Zaveri & Co

Company Secretaries

Dharmesh Zaveri

(Proprietor)

 

FCS. No.: 5418

CP No.: 4363

Place: Mumbai
thDate:   30  May 2018.
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DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF 

MANAGERIAL PERSONEEL), RULES, 2014

1.   The ratio remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employee and percentage  

increase in  remuneration of Director, CFO and CS:

Sr. No.

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

Mr. Rajendra Sanghavi

Mr. Umesh Sanghavi.

Mr. Tarak Sanghavi.

Ms. Ami Parikh

Mr. Nirmal Tiwari 

Designation

Chairman

Managing 

Director

CFO

CFOCS

Remuneration 

Paid for 

FY 2017-18 (`)

10,08,000/-

13,16,448/-

10,08,000/-

1,20,150/-

3,50,216/-

Remuneration 

Paid for FY 

2016-17 (`)

% increase in 
remuneration 

In the 
F Y 2017-18

Ratio/Times 
Per median 
of employee 

Remuneration

10,08,000/-

13,16,448/-

10,08,000/-

60,000/-

1,31,250/-

-

-

-

-

-

3.60

4.70

3.60

0.43

1.25

2. Percentage increase in median remuneration:

Median remuneration of employees in 

FY 2017-18 (`)

Median remuneration of employees in 

FY 2016-17 (`)
Percentage increase

2,79,996/- 2,64,000/- 6.06

3.   No. of permanent employees as on 31.3.2018 :   202 employees.

4.   Relationship between average increase in remuneration and company performance:

 The increase in remuneration is based on the company's performance and also includes various 

 other factors like  individual performance, experience, academic background and future growth

 prospects.

5.  The KMP Remuneration is not wholly related to the Companies Performance. They are paid as per  

 their  terms of employment. As such there is no increase in the remuneration of the KMP.

ANNEXURE II

Name

Director
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6. Variation in market capitalization, PE ratio:

Particulars As on 31.03.2018 As on 31.03.2017 Percentage increase

Market Capitalization of the Company

PE Ratio

Closing Market Share Price (BSE)

` 11,024,02,205/-

33.56

239.95

` 29,57,72,085/-

14.52

75.95

272.72

131.13

215.93

7. Comparison between average percentile increase and salaries of employees (excluding managerial 

personnel) and percentile increase in managerial remuneration:

Average percentile increase in 

salaries of employees other than 

managerial personnel in FY 2017-18

Percentile increase in 

managerial personnel 

remuneration in FY 2017-18

Justification

34.75%

There is no increase in managerial 

personnel remuneration for FY 

2017-18

The average percentile increases 

in the salaries of employees 

others than managerial personnel 

in FY 2017-18  is in accordance 

8. The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by Directors: 

There is no variable component in the remuneration paid to Directors.

9. There are 8 employees who have received remuneration in excess of the highest paid Director. Their ratios to 

the  highest  paid director are 1.15, 1.23, 1.63, 1.63, 1.67, 1.87, 1.90, 3.57.

10. This is to affirm that the above remuneration is paid as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company.
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I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

ANNEXURE III

FORM NO. MGT-9 EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR 
ENDED ON 31STMARCH, 2018
 [Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management 

and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN:

Registration Date

Name of the Company

Category/Sub-Category of the Company

Address of the Registered Office 

and contact details

Whether listed Company

Name, Address and Contact details 

of Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

L51900MH1986PLC041062

29.09.1986

Nikhil Adhesives Limited

Public Limited Company

315, The Summit Business Bay, Behind Gurunanak Petrol 

Pump, Opp. Cinemax, Andheri Kurla Road, Andheri (East), 

Mumbai, Maharashtra  PIN Code-400093

Listed Company (BSE LTD.)

Sharex Dynamic (India) Pvt. Ltd. Unit No.1 Luthra 

Industrial Premises, Safed Pool, Andheri Kurla Road, 

Andheri (East) Mumbai-400077

II. BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

Sr. No.
Name and Description of main 

Products/ Services

NIC Code of the 

Product/Service

% to total turnover 

of the Company

1. 
Polymeric Emulsions Adhesives, 

Plasticizers & solvent based Adhesives
24295 100%

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

Sr. No.
Name & address of 

the company
CIN/GLN Holding/Subsidiary/Associate % of shares held

N.A.

23
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IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN
(i) Category-wise Shareholding

24
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(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

Shareholder’s
Name

(iii)     Change in Promoter's Shareholding 

26
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(iv)Shareholding Pattern of top Ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)

% of total
Shares of

the 
Company

27
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(v)Shareholding of directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Mr. Umesh J. Sanghavi

At the beginning of the year

At the End of the year

Mr. Tarak J. Sanghavi

At the beginning of the year

29
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V. INDEBTEDNESS
    Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

                                                                                                                                                                   (Amount in lakhs)

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director

46 Lakhs as per Schedule of
the Companies Act, 2013.

30
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C)  Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than Managing Director/Manager/Whole time Director

Commission- 
as % of profit- others, specify

Company / B. Directors / C. Other Officers in Default

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

benefits
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ANNEXURE IV

DISCLOSURE OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND 
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUT GO
The Information under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 (3) of the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014 for the year ended March 31, 2018 is given here below and Forms part of the Directors Report

A)  Conservation of Energy: 
The Company has a well structured energy management system in place and regular efforts are made to 
optimize process parameters and energy conservation. Additionally, while undertaking modernization 
and technological upgradation of production facilities, due consideration is also given in selection of plant 
and equipments which conforms to the best in class energy conservation parameters. The other 
identified key initiatives for conservation of energy during the year were-

1) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:

a) Continuous replacement of incandescent bulbs with compact fluorescent (CFLs) and LED 
bulbs. These are energy efficient modern alternatives which save energy considerably & 
helps to reduce energy consumption.

b) Installation of VFD(variable frequency drive), the electronic device on the electrical motors, 
where the energy consumption is very high, by which considerable amount of energy is saved 
resulting in conservation of energy.

c) Capacities are installed for effective distribution of Electricity supply and improve the power 
factor. The company has carried out Automization of this system, resulting in better control 
and improving further power factor.

d) Energy also can be saved by better utilization. Staff is well trained accordingly. Running of equipments 

unnecessary also results in wastage of energy. Energy is conserved by stopping the wastage.

e) Undertaken thick plantation to help reducing pollution.

f) Upgradation of effluent treatment plant is continued. Treated water is used for washing & cleaning.

g) Water is consumed very efficiently avoiding any losses. Monitoring is done on day to day basis.

h) Treated efficient water is used.

2) The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy:

a) Alternative energy is any energy source that is an alternative to Fossil Fuel. There are various 
sources of alternate energy i.e. solar, wind, geothermal, biomass, bio fuels, hydropower etc. Solar 
power is the most convenient of all which can be made use of by installing solar panels and 
converting solar energy into directly electrical energy.

Management has understood the advantages of solar power and initiated the process to install 
solar panels which will help considerably to reduce power bill as well as conserving energy and in 
turn helping to reduce pollution.

3) The capital investment on energy conservation equipments:
                Rupees Six Lakhs were spent on energy conservation equipments.
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B) Technology absorption:

1)  The efforts made towards technology absorption:

We have a state of the art research and development laboratory to conduct new product developments, 

new applications development to meet customer needs and business aspirations.

2) The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import 
substitution, etc.:

Improvisation in products quality helps to retain and increase the market share. Product development 

too helps to reduce cost and sustain ability in market. We constantly look for process improvisation at 

manufacturing level to reduce energy consumptions, minimize waste generation and to produce cost 

effective products in line with environmental policies.

3) In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the 

beginning of the financial year)

Not applicable as no technology was imported during the last three years.

4) The expenditure incurred on Research and Development:

Rupees 91 Lakhs were spent on Research and Development.

C) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

Details of Foreign Exchange Earnings and expenditure are contained in Note No.38 in the Notes to the 

Financial Statements.

For and On Behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Mumbai   Rajendra J. Sanghavi
Date: 30th May 2018   Chairman 
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Company's Philosophy on Corporate Governance

Your Company firmly believes in and continues to practice good Corporate Governance. Your Company's 

essential character is shaped by the ethical practices in the conduct of its business transparency, 

professionalism and accountability. Your Company continuously endeavors to improve on these aspects on an 

ongoing basis. In order to achieve the objective, your Company is driven by the following guiding principles:

 Improving the effectiveness of the Board of Directors in supervising management; and

 Improving the quality of information and communication with stakeholders. 

Your Company believes that these two principles will result in a better shareholders value. 

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of your Company comprises of Executive Chairman, Managing Director, Executive 

Director and Independent Non Executive Directors. The Managing Director of your Company is responsible for 

day to day operations and the overall business of your Company. 

Composition of our Board and the No. of Directorship held by each Director:

Attendance 
At Annual 

General
Meeting

No. of 
other 

Director
-ships

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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Inter-se relationship between the Directors

Mr. Umesh Sanghavi, Mr. Tarak Sanghavi and Mr. Rajendra Sanghavi are brothers.  There is no relationship 

between any of the Non-Executive Independent Directors

Board Meetings 
th thDuring the financial year ended on March 31, 2018, Six Board Meetings were held on 26  May, 2017, 14  

th th th thSeptember, 2017, 14  December,2017,  15  January, 2018, 14  February 2018 and 07  March, 2018.
st thThe 31  Annual General Meeting of the company was held on 28  September, 2017.

All material information are circulated to the Directors before the meeting or placed at the meeting including 

minimum information as required under Annexure-X to the Listing Agreement(s). All the directors have 

complete and unrestricted access to any information required by them to understand the transactions and take 

decisions. This enables the Board to discharge its responsibilities effectively and make an informed decision. 

The compliance report of all laws applicable to your Company as prepared and compiled and circulated to all the 

Directors along with the Agenda and placed/reviewed in each Board Meeting.

The Board has  laid down a Code  of  Conduct for  all  Board Members and senior management personnel of your  

Company  and  the  same  has been  posted  on  the website of  your  Company.  For  the  year under review, all  

Directors  and  senior management  personnel  of  your  Company  have  affirmed  their  adherence to the 

provisions of the said Code.

Brief  resume  and  profile  of  a  Director  retiring  by  rotation  and  eligible  for  re-appointment at  the  ensuing  

Annual  General  Meeting (AGM) are given in the Notice of AGM of your Company, annexed to this Annual Report.

Audit Committee

The  terms  of  reference,  role  and   scope  of  the  Audit  Committee  are  in  line  with  those  prescribed   by 

Regulation 18 read with Schedule II ( Part C) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015. Your  Company also complies  with  the  provisions  of  Section 177 of  the Companies Act, 

2013 pertaining  to  Audit  Committee  and  its  functioning. 

Details of the meetings held by the Audit Committee are as follows:
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Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee inter alia includes determination of your 

Company's policy on specific remuneration packages for Directors.

Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy of the Company is to ensure that executive directors of the Company are rewarded in a 

fair and responsible manner, for their individual contributions to the success of your Company. The 

remuneration paid to the Executive Directors is recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and approved by the Board of Directors in the Board 

meeting, subject to the subsequent approval by the shareholders at the general meeting and such other 

authorities as and when required. Non – Executive Independent Directors are paid sitting fees for attending 

Board meetings.

32ND ANNUAL REPORT 2017 - 2018

th26  May, 2017
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Remuneration to Directors 
The remuneration details for the financial year 2017-18 are as follows:

Notice period for the Directors is as applicable to the senior employees of your Company. No severance fee is payable 

to the Directors on termination of employment. Your Company does not have a scheme for stock options for the 

Directors or the employees. 

stShareholding of the Non Executive Directors as on 31  March 2018
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Independent Directors Meeting:

During the year under review, a separate meeting of Independent Directors was held on 14th February, 2018, 

interalia, to discuss:

  Evaluation of the performance of Non-Independent Directors and Board of Directors as a whole;
 Evaluation of the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking in to account the views of the
       Executive and Non-Executive Directors; and 
 Evaluation of the quality, content and timelines of flow of information between the management and the 

Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and necessarily perform its duties.

All the Independent Directors of your Company were present in the meeting.

Performance Evaluation of Board, Committees and Directors

A formal annual evaluation was carried out by the Board of its own performance and that of its committees and 

individual directors. During the year under review, one meeting of the Independent Directors was held wherein 

the performance of non-independent directors, Chairman (Non-executive) of your Company and the Board as a 

whole were reviewed. The performance evaluation of Committees and Independent Directors was carried out 

by the entire Board, excluding the director being evaluated. The Independent Directors also assessed the 

quality, quantity and timelines of flow of information between your Company management and the Board that 

is necessary for the Directors to effectively and necessarily perform their duties. The Board, it's Committees and 

Directors evaluation provided a formal process of communication in raising issues that might not otherwise be 

vetted by the Board, with the underlying objectives to develop an action plan to improve the Board 

performance, interalia, by ensuring compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and code of 

corporate governance.

The structure valuation process was focused on identifying areas of improvement, if any, such as creating 

balance of power between the Board and management, long term strategy, more effectively fulfilling the 

Board's oversight responsibilities, the adequacy of committee(s) structures, the assessment of Board culture to 

ascertain whether the same is conducive to attract right individuals to join the Board and updating the 

evaluation process itself.

A review of fiduciary duties of the Board, governance policy adopted by your Company and acquaintance and 

familiarization of Independent Directors with your Company and its business model, their roles, rights, 

responsibilities in your Company, nature of the industry in which your Company operates, etc. and contribution 

by each director, committees of the Board was also carried out during the process of evaluation. The appraisal of 

the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer and his level of engagement in the affairs of your Company 

was an important component of the Board evaluation.

The final evaluation was thereafter deliberated and assessed taking into account inputs from the Board about 

evaluation of independent directors and various Committees of the Board and suggesting action plan for 

improving Board performance and plan for next Board, its Committee(s) and individual director's evaluation.

General Body Meetings

The last three Annual General Meetings of your Company were held at the Registered Office of the Company on 26th 

September, 2015, 29th September, 2016 and 28th September, 2017 respectively.
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Disclosures
(a) There are no materially significant related party transactions entered into by your Company with its 

Promoters, Directors or Management, their subsidiaries or relatives, etc. that may have potential conflict 

with the interests of your Company at large .A statement in summary form of transactions with the related 

parties during the year in the ordinary course of business and at arm's length basis is disclosed in Note No.43 

of Notes to financial statements in the Annual Report.

(b) Your Company has complied with the requirements of Stock Exchange, Securities and Exchange Board of 

India and other statutory authorities on matter relating to capital markets during the last three years and 

consequently no penalties or strictures have been imposed on your Company by these authorities.

(c) Your Company has generally complied with all the mandatory requirements of the Listing Agreement to the 

extent applicable to your Company.

(d) While preparation of the financial statements during the year under review, no accounting treatment which 

was different from that prescribed in the Indian Accounting Standards was followed. The significant 

accounting policies applied in preparation and presentation of financial statements have been set out in 

Note No.1 of Notes to financial statements in the Annual Report.

(e) Your Company has laid down procedures to inform the Board members about the risk assessment and 

minimization procedures covering the entire gamut of business operations of your Company. These 

procedures are periodically reviewed to ensure that executive management controls risks by means of a 

properly defined framework.

(f) The designated senior management personnel of your Company have disclosed to the Board that no 

material, financial and commercial transactions have been entered into during the year under review in 

which they have personal interest, which may have a potential conflict with the interest of your Company at 

large.

(g) The Managing Director and the CFO have furnished a duly signed Certificate to the Board for the year ended 

March 31, 2018 in accordance with the provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) and the same has been placed in the Board Meeting held on May 30, 2018.

(h)  In accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

1992, as amended Mr. Nirmal Tiwari has been designated as the Compliance Officer of your Company under 

your Company's Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading. He is responsible for adherence to the 

Code by your Company and its designated employees. Your Company also adheres to the disclosure 

practices for Prevention of Insider Trading as specified in the aforesaid SEBI Regulations.

(i) Your Company has adopted a Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy for developing a culture where it is 

safe for all directors /employees to raise concerns about any unacceptable practice and any event of 

misconduct. The Policy allows unrestricted access to all employees and others to approach the Audit 

Committee and there has been no instance during the year where any personnel has been denied access to 

the Audit Committee. The quarterly report with number of complaints received under the policy and their 

outcome is being placed before the Audit Committee.

(j) Your Company is familiarizing the Independent Directors on its Board on a quarterly basis and the detail of 

familiarization programme are posted on the website of your Company and is available at the 

weblinkhttp://www.nikhiladhesives.com

(k) Your  Company  has  presently  not  adopted  certain  non-mandatory  requirements  in  regard to 

maintenance of  Non-Executive  Chairman's  office,  sending  half-yearly  declaration of financial 

performance to each house hold of shareholders and reporting of internal auditors directly to the Audit 

Committee.

Means of Communications

Quarterly / Half-yearly financial results of your Company are forwarded to the BSE Ltd., published in Free Press 

Journal (English Daily) and Navshakti (Marathi Daily) and uploaded on your Company's website. 

(www.nikhiladhesives.com).
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General Shareholder Information

9.High / Low share price during last financial year (month wise)
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`

rd On or after 3 October 2018 ( if declared)

29242
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10) Distribution Schedule of Numbers of Shares as on 31.03.2018

11)  Distribution Schedule of Numbers of Shares as on 31.03.2018
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DECLARATION

As required under Schedule V (D) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 

2015, the Board Members and the Senior Management Personnel have confirmed compliances with the Code 

of Conduct for the Board of Directors and the Senior Management for the year ended 31 March, 2018.

For Nikhil Adhesives Limited

Place: Mumbai          Umesh. J. Sanghavi
thDate: 30  May 2018           Managing Director

MANAGING DIRECTOR AND CFO CERTIFICATION

The Board of Directors,
Nikhil Adhesives Limited,
Mumbai.

Re: Financial Statements for the year 2017 - 2018 Certification by Managing Director and CFO.
We the undersigned, on the basis of the review of the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2018 and to the best of our knowledge and belief, hereby certify that:-

1. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statements or omit any material fact or contains 
statements that might be misleading.

2. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with 
existing Indian accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

3. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the 
year ended March 31, 2018 which is fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's code of conduct.

4. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls; We have evaluated the 
effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company and we have disclosed to the auditors and the 
Audit Committee those deficiencies, of which we are aware, in the design or operation of the internal control 
systems and that we have taken the required steps to rectify these deficiencies.

5. We further certify that:-

a. There have been no significant changes in internal control during this year;

b. There have been no significant changes in accounting policies during this year;
c. There have been no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement 

therein, of management or an employee having significant role in the Company's internal control systems.

Umesh J. Sanghavi Ami Parikh

Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
th th 30  May,2018         30 May,2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

CIN: L51900MH1986PLC041062

Nominal Capital : ̀  5 crores

To,    

The Members of 

Nikhil Adhesives Limited

We have examined all the relevant records of Nikhil Adhesives Limited (“the Company”) for the purpose of 

certifying compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance under the SEBI (Lisintg Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2018. We have obtained 

all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the 

purpose of certification.

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination 

was limited to the procedure and implementation process adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance 

of the conditions of the corporate governance. 

This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor efficacy or effectiveness with 

which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations and information furnished to 

us, we certify that the Company has complied with all the applicable requirements of Corporate Governance of 

the said Regulations. 

For PHD & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

(Firm Registration No.111236W)

Paresh Vakharia

Partner

Membership No.: 38220

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 30th May, 2018
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TO THE MEMBERS OF NIKHIL ADHESIVES LIMITED

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Nikhil Adhesives Limited (“the 

Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit and 

Loss(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the statement of changes in 

equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 

information. 

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE Ind AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements to give a true and 

fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows 

and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 

prescribed  under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 

2015, as amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India . This responsibility also 

includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 

selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 

reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 

controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 

records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and 

fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

                                                                                                                                                                                    

 AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.

4. In conducting our audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing 

standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under provisions of the Act and 

the rules made thereunder and the order issued under section 143(11) of the Act.

5. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of 

the Act and other applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and 

pronouncements require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements are free from material 

misstatements.

6. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 

the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the 

Company's preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view, in order to design 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the 

appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by 

the Company's directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the  Ind AS financial statements.

7. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
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OPINION

8. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required 

and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally 

accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018, and its profits, total 

comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

9. As required by 'the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 issued by the Central Government of India in 

terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act (hereinafter referred to as the “Order”), and on the basis 

of such checks of the books and records of the Company as we consider appropriate and according to the 

information and explanations given to us, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in 

paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

10. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 

appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash 

Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with 

the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards 

prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the company, taken on 

record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from being 

appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company 

and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure B.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 

according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 

were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. An amount of Rs. 1,13,569/- were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 

Fund by the Company in October, 2017, is pending transfer. The management is taking necessary steps 

to comply with transfer of the said amount to the fund.

For PHD & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.111236W

Paresh Vakharia

Partner 

Membership No.: 38220

Mumbai

30 May 2018
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Referred to in paragraph 9 of Independent Auditors' Report of even date to the members of Nikhil 
Adhesives Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018: 

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of fixed assets(Property, Plant and Equipment).

  (b) The fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management in accordance 
with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, provides for physical 
verification of the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to the information and 
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

  (c)   According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us, we 
report that the title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties are held in the name of the 
Company as at the balance sheet date, except in respect of immovable properties that have been 
taken on lease and disclosed as fixed assets in the financial statements, the lease agreements 
are in the name of the Company, where the Company is the lessee in the agreement. 

 (ii)     The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during       
the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.     

 (iii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, 
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in 
the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'). Accordingly, 
paragraphs 3 (iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(iv)     In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
granted any loans, or provided any guarantees or security to the parties covered under Section 185 
of the Act. The Company has not provided any loans, or any guarantees or security to the parties 
covered under Section 186 of the Act. The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 
186 of the Act in respect of making investments. 

(v)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has  
accepted deposits during the year and complied with the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of  
India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the rules framed there under, as applicable. 

(vi)  The maintenance of cost records have been specified by the Central Government under section 
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the 
Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 as amended, prescribed 
by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of the Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and 
maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to 
determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii) In respect of statutory dues:

(a) According to the records of the Company, undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, 
employees' state insurance, income tax, sales tax (including Goods and Service Tax), service 
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues have been 
generally regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities. According to the information 
and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the aforesaid dues 
were outstanding as at March 31, 2018, for a period of more than six months from the date of 
becoming payable.

(b) There are no dues of income tax, sales tax (including Goods and Service Tax), service tax, duty of 
customs, duty of excise, value added tax which have not been deposited as on March 31, 2018, 
on account of disputes.

Annexure A
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(viii)    In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to banks. The company did not have any outstanding 
dues to financial institutions or government or debenture holders.

(ix)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans have 
been applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which they were raised. The 
Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instruments).

(x)   To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no 
fraud by the Company and no fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or 
reported during the year. 

(xi)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the managerial -
remuneration has been paid in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the 
provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

 (xii)   In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a 
Nidhi company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of 
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is in 
compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, for all transactions with the 
related parties and details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone 
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.   

(xiv) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has made preferential allotment of shares during the year. 
Accordingly, Section 42 and 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant rules have been complied 
with by the company.  

 (xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the 
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to 
its directors and hence provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable. 

 (xvi)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not 
required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For PHD & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.111236W

Paresh Vakharia

Partner 

Membership No.: 38220

Mumbai

30 May 2018
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Referred to in paragraph 10(f) of our report of even date to the members of Nikhil Adhesives Limited on 

the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“The Act”)

1. We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Nikhil Adhesives Limited (“the 

Company”) as at March 31, 2018, in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the 

Company for the year ended on that date.

 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

2. The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 

based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 

essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 

Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These 

responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 

that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 

adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 

errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 

financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 

reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 

Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting ('the Guidance Note') and the Standards on Auditing 

deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 

financial controls, to the extent applicable to an audit of Internal financial controls. Those Standards and the 

Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was 

established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 

financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 

financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 

over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 

design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 

depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Annexure B 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

6. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal 

financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(a)  pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; 

(b)  provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 

expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management 

and directors of the Company; and 

(c)  provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, 

use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error 

or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 

over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over 

financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion

8. In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, 

in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such 

internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on 

the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For PHD & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.111236W

Paresh Vakharia

Partner 

Membership No.: 38220

Mumbai

30 May 2018
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1. Property Plant and Equipment: 
The Company has availed the exemption available under Ind AS 101 to continue the carrying value for all of its property, 
plant and equipment as recognised in the financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind  AS, measured as per the 
Previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition (April 1, 2016).

2.  Expected Credit Loss:
Under the Ind AS, impairment allowance has been determined based on expected credit loss (ECL) model. Applying this 
model, the Company impaired its trade receivables by  ̀  25,11,199 as on the transition date which has been recognised in 
retained earnings. The impairment of ` 8,72,444  for the year ended March 31, 2017 has been recognised in the Trade  
Receivables and in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3. Lease hold land:
Under Previous GAAP, leasehold land was disclosed as part of property, plant & equipment and amortised by way of 
depreciation. Under Ind AS, the leasehold land is treated as an operating lease and consequently the unamortised portion 
of upfront payment for the leasehold land has been shown under the head' Other non-current assets'.

4. Forward Contracts:
Under Previous GAAP, the difference between spot rate and forward rate is amortised over the tenure of the forward 
contract and premium paid on options were expensed out. Under Ind AS, forward/option contract is required to be 
accounted at fair value. Accordingly, the company has provided for loss of  ̀  77,110 in the Statement of Profit and Loss for 
the year ended March 31, 2017.

5. Discount
Cash discounts and Trade discounts have been reduced from revenue as per Ind AS, amounting to ` 17,45,276 & 
` 5,32,21,679 respectively for the year ended March 31, 2017, and corresponding expenses have been reduced. This does 
not affect profit or equity.

6. Security Deposit Paid:
Under Previous GAAP, interest free lease security deposits( that are refundable on completion of the lease term) are 
recorded at their transaction value. Under Ind AS, all financial assets are required to be recognised at fair value. 
Accordingly, the company has fair valued these security deposits under Ind AS. Difference between the fair value and 
transaction value of the security deposit has been recognised as prepaid rent.

7. Borrowings: 
Under Previous GAAP, transaction cost on borrowings were charged off to expense during availment of loan. Under Ind AS, 
the transaction cost is to be required to be deducted from the carrying amount of the borrowings on the initial recognition. 
These costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss over the tenure of the borrowing as part of the interest 
expense by applying the Effective Interest Rate method.

8. Investments:
Under Previous GAAP, investment made in equity instruments and mutual funds were classified as long term investments 
and carried at cost. Under Ind AS these instruments are required to be measured at fair value. Equity instruments are fair 
valued through other comprehensive income.

9.  Other Comprehensive Income:
Under Previous GAAP, the Company has not presented Other Comprehensive Income(OCI) separately. Hence, the 
Statement of Profit and Loss under previous GAAP has been reconciled with statement of profit and loss and other 
comprehensive income as per Ind AS.

10.  Deferred Tax:
Previous GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focuses on differences 
between taxable profits and accounting profits for the period. Ind AS 12 requires entities to account for deferred taxes 
using the balance sheet approach, which focuses on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or 
liability in the balance sheet and its tax base. As per Ind AS, MAT credit entitlement is to be reduced from the deferred tax 
liabilities, which under the previous GAAP was shown as advances receivable.

11. Excise duty:
Under the previous GAAP, revenue from sale of products was presented net of excise duty under the head revenue from 
operations, whereas under Ind AS, revenue from sale of products includes excise duty and the corresponding excise duty 
expense is presented separately on the face of the statement of profit and loss. However, the change does not affect total 

DISCLOSURES AS REQUIRED BY IND AS 101 - FIRST TIME ADOPTION.
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Corporate Information
Nikhil Adhesives Ltd(“the Company”) a Public Limited Company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956, is listed on 
the Bombay Stock Exchange. The Company is mainly engaged in the business of manufacturing various types of polymer 
emulsions and adhesives that are used for different applications. The Company has three manufacturing units located at 
Dahanu (Maharashtra), Silvassa (Dadra Nagar Haveli) and at Dahej (Gujarat). The company is also engaged in the business 
of trading in chemicals.

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1.1 Statement of Compliance
In accordance with the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company has adopted with effect from 
April 1, 2016, Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules 2015 and complied with the requirement under Para 3 of Ind AS 101.These financial statements are the 
first financial statements of the Company under Ind AS. The date of transition to Ind AS is April 1, 2016.

1.2 Basis of Preparation
1.2.1 The financial statements of the Company are consistently prepared and presented under historical cost convention 
on an accrual basis in accordance with Ind AS except for certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair 
values. 1.2.2 The Company’s functional currency and presentation currency is Indian Rupees (INR)1.2.3 Classification of 
Assets and Liabilities into Current and Non-Current The Company presents its assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet 
based on current / non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

a)      expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
b)      held primarily for the purpose of trading;
c)      expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; ord) cash or cash equivalent unless  
 restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least  twelve months after the reporting period.All 
 other assets are classified as non-current. A liability is treated as current when :
a)      it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
b)      it is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
c)      it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; ord)     there is no unconditional right to defer 

 the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. All other liabilities are classified 
 as noncurrent.

1.3 Use of judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the Company’s financial statements required management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying 
disclosures, and the disclosures of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result 
in outcomes that require a material adjustment in the future periods in the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected. 
The Company’s accounting policies, management has made judgements in respect of evaluation of recoverability of 
deferred tax assets, which has the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of 
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities within:

a) Useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets: The Company has estimated useful life of the 
Property Plant and Equipment as specified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. However the actual useful life for 
individual equipments could turn out to be different, there could be technology changes, breakdown, unexpected failure 
leading to impairment or complete discard. Alternately the equipment may continue to provide useful service well beyond 
the useful life assumed.

b) Fair value measurement of financial instruments: When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities 
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active market, the fair value is measured using valuation techniques 
including the discounted cash flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where 
possible, but where this is not possible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values.

c) Impairment of financial and non-financial assets: The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on 
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and 
selecting the input for the impairment calculations, based on Company’s past history, existing market conditions, 
technology, economic developments as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018 
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d) Taxes:
Taxes have been paid / provided, exemptions availed, allowances considered etc. are based on the extant laws 
and the Company’s interpretation of the same based on the legal advice received wherever required. These could 
differ in the view taken by the authorities, clarifications issued subsequently by the government and courts, 
amendments to statutes by the government etc.

e) Defined benefit plans:
The cost of defined benefit plans and other post –employment benefits plans and the present value of such 
obligations are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various 
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.

f) Provisions:
The Company makes provision for gratuity based on report received from the independent actuary. These 
valuation reports use complex valuation models using not only the inputs provided by the Company but also 
various other economic variables. Considerable judgement is involved in the process.

g) Contingencies:
A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable 
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be 
made. Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required 
to settle the present obligations at the end of the reporting period. However the actual liability could be 
considerably different.

1.4 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of 
recoverable taxes, trade discounts and rebates less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. The 
cost of tangible assets comprises of its purchase price, borrowing cost, any costs directly attributable to bringing 
the asset into the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by 
management, initial estimation of any decommissioning obligations and finance cost.

Stores and spares which meet the definition of Property, Plant and Equipment and satisfy recognition criteria of 
Ind AS 16 are capitalised as Property, Plant and Equipment. An item of Property, Plant and Equipment and any 
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is included in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Capital work-in-progress includes cost of Property, Plant and Equipment which are not ready for their intended 
use. 

The residual values and useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment are reviewed at each financial year end, 
and changes, if any, are accounted prospectively. 

Depreciation on the Property, Plant and Equipment is provided over the useful life of assets as specified in 
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 using straight line method. Property, Plant and Equipment which are 
added / disposed off during the year, depreciation is provided on pro rata basis with reference to the month of 
addition / deletion. 

In line with the provisions of Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013, the Company depreciates significant 
components of the main asset (which have different useful lives as compared to the main asset) based on the 
individual useful life of those components. Useful life for such components has been assessed based on the 
historical experience and internal technical inputs.

1.5 Intangible Assets
Intangible Assets are recognised only if they are separately identifiable and the Company expects to receive 
future economic benefits arising out of them. Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable 
taxes less accumulated amortisation/ depletion and impairment loss, it any. The cost comprises purchase price, 
borrowing costs, and any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended 
use.
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Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on straight line basis over their useful economic life and assessed 
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation 
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at each year end. 
The amortised expense on intangible assets with finite lives and impairment loss is recognised in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss. '(The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Gains or losses 
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the 
asset is derecognised.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually. The 
assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be 
supportable. If not the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis. The 
impairment loss on intangible assets with indefinite life is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

1.6 Impairment of non – financial assets
At each Balance Sheet date, the Company assesses whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired 
and also whether there is an indication of reversal of impairment loss recognised in the previous periods. If any 
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company determines the 
recoverable amount and impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its 
recoverable amount.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of 
disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not 
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired 
and is written down to its recoverable amount. 

In assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no 
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

1.7 Inventories
Inventories are valued as under : 
Raw materials, packing material, stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. However, 
materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the 
finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above manufacturing cost.

Stock in process is valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. 

Finished goods (including in transit) are valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower. Cost for this 
purpose includes direct materials, direct labour utilities, other variable direct costs and manufacturing 
overheads, based on the normal operating capacity and depreciation.

1.8 Cash and cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with 
an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. 

For the purpose of statement of cashflows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits as 
defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered as an integral part of the Company’s 
cash management. 

Bank Balances other than above
Dividend escrow account balances, deposits with banks as margin money for guarantees issued by the banks, 
deposits kept as security deposits for statutory authorities are accounted as bank balances other than Cash and 
Cash equivalents.
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Cash Flow Statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of 
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments 
and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows . The cash flows from operating, 
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

1.9 Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity.
A.  Financial Assets:
(I)     Classification :
The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other 
comprehensive income, or fair value through profit and loss on the basis of its business model for managing the 
financial asset and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

(ii)    Initial recognition and measurement :
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recognised at fair 
value through profit and loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

(iii)   Financial assets measured at amortised cost :
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate method (EIR), if these 
financial assets are held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual 
cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding. The losses arising from the impairment are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iv)   Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income :
Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are 
held within a business whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling 
financial assets and the contractual terms give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on the principal outstanding.

(v)    Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss :
Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair 
value movements are recognised in profit and loss.

(vi)   Derecognition of financial assets :
A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired 
or the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

B. Impairment of Financial Assets:
In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and 
recognition of impairment loss. The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment 
loss allowance on trade receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to 
track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each 
reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

C. Financial Liabilities
(I)     Classification :
The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for 
financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss. Such liabilities, including derivatives that are 
liabilities, shall be subsequently measured at fair value.

(ii)    Initial recognition and measurement :
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, in the case of loans, borrowings and payables, net 
of directly attributable transaction costs. Financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and 
borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.
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(iii)   Subsequent measurement :
All financial liabilities are re-measured at fair value through statement of profit and loss and include financial 
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through 
statement of profit and loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the 
purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

(iv)   Loans and borrowings :
Interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using Effective Interest 
Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are 
derecognised as well as through EIR amortisation process. The EIR amortisation is included as finance cost in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(v)    Derecognition of financial liabilities :
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or canceled or 
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms,  or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The 
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(vi)   Derivative financial instruments :
The Company uses derivative financial instruments such as forward currency contracts and options to hedge 
its foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the 
date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. The gain 
or loss in the fair values is taken to Statement of Profit and Loss at the end of every financial year. Profit or 
loss on cancellations / renewals of forward contracts and options are recognised as income or expense of the 
financial year.



1.10 Fair value measurement
The Company measures certain financial assets and financial liabilities including derivatives and defined benefit plans at 
fair value.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date. 

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes 
place either: 
(a)  In the principal market for the asset or liability; or
(b)  In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing 
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic interest.

1.11 Borrowing cost
Borrowing costs, if any, directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily 
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized. All other borrowing costs are 
expensed in the period in which they occur. 

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. 
Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

1.12 Provisions, Contingent liabilities, Contingent Assets
A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an 
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions 
are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present 
obligations at the end of the reporting period. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted 
using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the 
changes in the provision due to the passage of time are recognised as a finance cost. Contingent liabilities are disclosed in 
the case of :
(a)  a present obligation arising from the past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required 
to settle the obligation;
(b)  a present obligation arising from the past events, when no reliable estimate is possible;
(c)  a possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote. Contingent 
assets are not recognised but disclosed in the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefit is probable. 

1.13 Employee Benefits
Employee benefits include Provident Fund, Gratuity Fund, and Compensated Leave.
(I) Provident Fund :
The Company contributes to a recognised provident fund which is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions are 
accounted for on an accrual basis and recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.  
(ii) Gratuity :
The employees of the Company are eligible for gratuity in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, and is a Defined 
Employee Benefit. The above benefit is not funded but provision is made in the accounts. The Company's net obligation in 
respect of the gratuity benefit is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that the employees have earned in 
return for their service in the current and prior periods, that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The 
present value of the obligation under such benefit plans is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected 
Unit Credit Method which recognises each period of service that give rise to additional unit of employee benefit 
entitlement and measures each unit separately to built up the final obligation. The obligation is measured at present values 
of estimated future cash flows. The discounted rates used for determining the present value are based on the market yields 
on Government Securities as at the balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 
 (iii) Compensated Leave :
Unutilised leave of staff lapses as at the year end and is not encashable.  Accordingly, no provision is made for compensated 
absences.

1.14 Revenue Recognition
The Company recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured and it is fairly certain that it will 
be realised.
Sale of Goods :
Sales are accounted on passing of risks, rewards and control of ownership attached to the goods to external customers. 
Gross sales measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable include excise duty and are net of returns 
and discounts.
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Dividend Income :
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive is established and there is a reasonable certainty of its collection.
Contract Revenue :
Revenue from goods manufactured under contractual arrangement is recognised on completion of the contractual 
perfoermance.
Interest Income :
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a 
financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering 
all the contractual terms of the financial instruments (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but 
does not consider the expected credit loss.
Insurance compensation :
Compensation in respect of insurance claims is recognised on acceptance basis or when there is reasonable certainty that 
the ultimate collection will be made.
Others :
Income in respect of other claims and commissions are measured at fair value and recognised when there is reasonable 
certainty that the ultimate collection will be made.
 
1.15 Taxes on Income
Income tax expenses comprise current tax expenses and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liabilities during the 
year. Current and Deferred tax are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate to items that are 
recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also 
recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity respectively.
Current Tax :
The Company provides for current tax based on the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 applicable to the Company.
Deferred Tax :
Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for 
deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying 
amount. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and 
any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be 
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax 
losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. 
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has 
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is 
realised or liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the 
reporting date. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

1.16 Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit after tax or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. In case there are any 
dilutive securities during the period presented, the impact of the same is given to arrive at diluted earnings per share.

1.17 Segment Reporting
The operating segments have been identified on the basis of nature of products and same are accordingly evaluated by the 
Manager and Board of Directors. Company’s operating segments are Manufacturing of Adhesives & Emulsions and 
Trading in Chemicals & Others. Company accordingly reports its financials under two segments i.e. Manufacturing of 
Adhesives & Emulsions and Trading in Chemicals & Others.
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1.18 Leases
Determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the 
inception date, whether the arrangement qualifies as lease is dependent on the use of a specific asset(s) or where the 
arrangement conveys right to use the asset, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement. 

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the rights and benefits of ownership of the leased assets are 
classified as operating leases. Lease payments under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss on a straight line basis.

1.19 Foreign exchange transactions
Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. All 
monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities are converted at the exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date. All 
exchange differences arising on translation of monetary items are dealt within the Statement of Profit and Loss.

1.20 First-time adoption - mandatory exceptions, optional exemptions
The Company has prepared the opening Balance Sheet as per Ind AS as of the transition date which is 1st April 2016, by
(a)      recognising all assets and liabilities whose recognition is required by Ind AS;
(b)      not recognising items of assets or liabilities which are not permitted by lnd AS;
(c)       reclassifying items from Previous GAAP to Ind AS as required under Ind AS; and
(d)    applying Ind AS in measurement of recognised assets and liabilities.

However, this principle is subject to certain exceptions and certain optional exemptions availed by the Company as 
detailed below:

(a)     Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
The Company has applied the derecognition requirements of financial assets and liabilities prospectively for transactions 
occurring on or after April 1, 2016 (date of transition).
(b)     Impairment of financial assets
The Company has applied the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 retrospectively; however, as permitted by Ind AS 
101, it has used reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort to determine the 
credit risk at the date that financial instruments were initially recognised in order to compare it with the credit risk at the 
transition date. Further, the Company has not undertaken an exhaustive search for information when determining, at the 
date of transition to Ind AS, whether there have been significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition, as 
permitted by Ind AS 101.
        Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets.

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its plant and equipment, investment property and 
intangible assets recognised as of April 1, 2016 measured as per Previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed 
cost as of the aforesaid transition date.
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